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A. Um, it means, urn, that, u¡n, Iet,s say f wrote an

article, um, a column for The Nation, u¡n, that, um, I
rrras free to then post it elsewhere, um, within 4g or
after 48 hours, üh, if I, you know, gave The Nation
some credit,ors Èhat where it came from.

Okay.

um, and that thÍs was done in fact encouraged to
do this because it spread pubriclty for The Nation.
You know, it was tike publicity of The Nation.

ArJ ADDTSON: Do you have any other questions on

this document, sir?

MR. MEJfA: No, f don't.

AtJ ADDISON: Mr. MeJia, do you have comments or
objections to making the agreement part of the
record?

o.

A.

MR. MEJIA:

ALJ ADDISON: Mr. Mitchell, do you?

(Beeping sound)

f f m sorry. I canrt make that be quiet.
Mr' Mitcherr-, do you have comments or objections

to maklng the March 11, 2OL3 agreement part of the
record?

MR. MITCHELL: Um, we1l, the only objection

The Nation Co. Ltd. partners O5/27/IS 39
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A. f t's a major, uR, bJ_og ethic __ all sorts of
things -- but they,re basically r^rere a bJ_og

site I'm not sure what they call themsel_ves in
the (unintel_ligible, one second, O: 16 :20) , um,

started around Z0O5 by Arianna Huffington and, ufrr at
first it was realty just featured hundreds of
different broggers and now, since then they do other
respective -- they do original pieces and they do

investigations and massively popuJ_ar and, üfr,

(unintelJ_igibJ_e, one second, O: 16 :44) .

0. Did you do any bJ-ogging for them when you were

bl_ogging for The Nation?

A' r did in a certain period. r .d have to go back.

r know, ufr, in my memory the fj-rst year r was at rhe
Nation magazine. Katrina was encouraging me and

others to -- to cross post for the Huffi.ngton post.

she did it herser-f . she r,üas writing for The Nation
and writing for the grlashington post. so she wour_d

show up freguently in Huffington post, unìr with
pieces she had written elsewhere. she encouraged

people. I think she felt that that was, urì, you

. The Nation co. Ltd. partners - 04/16/15 19
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MITCHELL _ WITNESS

know, didn't gain that much and she stopped doing

that and, u*r r stopped doing that for quite a while

and the dates aren't exactly.

o. !'Ihen you say she encouraged you. what did she say?

A. she encouraged, r think she it might even be in
The Nation contract but it wasr lou know, you are not

onry free but if you want to it's a good idea to
cross post at that stage, and we're tal_king four
years ago. Um, and obviousJ_y I did my bio and it
said Nation brogger and (uninterJ.igible, one second,

0:I7 252) something J_ike that. So it was seen

as and r often wourd link to things at rhe Nation

and -- it was just seen as a good __ good eyebatls

for The Nation since the Huffington post J_s many,

many times bigger.

O. Uh-huh. So, uh, would you say -- say 2013 to what

were you blogging for the, uh, Huffington post by

then for that period of time?

A. I -- f 'd be surprised if I didn't do a few. I,d be

very surprised if r didn't. r wrote dozens of posts.

r often did things around this nucrear issue. um --
O. Um, would you say it woutd be once a week?

A. No.

O. No? Did you write that often?

The Narion Co. Ltd. partners _ 04/16/15 20
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VANDEN HEUVEL _ $]ITNESS

0. Okay. Was the blog called Media Fix?

A. f donrt remember.

O. $las the blog required to be on The Nation lfeb site?

ALJ ADDISON: You got to stop there. If she

says, she doesn't remember if there was a required

blog. You can't go more into the required blog.

MR. MEJIA: Oh. No, she she testified that

there was a bÌog. I I'm just

ALJ ADDISON: Not a blog, a Twitter account.

MR. MEJIA: No. I'm not. I'm off the Twitter

thing. I'm just asking her about the blog, noü¡.

ALJ ADDISON: I'm sorry. I thought. you hrere

still on Twitter.

BY MR. MEJIA

A. The blog -- the bJ_og was, um, The Nation blog but it

was picked up by other places too as I recall. But

it was I -- I don't remem.ber the rubric because I

said there was a rubric name assigned to it.

O. lfhat do you mean a rubric?

A. Like a title, liker lou know, Media Matters. f don't

remember the name of it. But I remember it it

wasnrt just Greg Mitchell. It was called -- title.

MR. MITCHELL: Is it totally improper for me

to

The Nation Co. Ltd
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MITCHELL - $IITNESS

a.

(-

Now, what about the content of each bJ_og? l{ho -_ was

there an owner of that content or an -- pubtishing

rights or copyrights?

WeIIr 1zou're getting into copyright l_aw which I'm

very weak on. I --

Al-1 right. Could you take your content and sell it

to The New york Times?

Could -- could I?

A.

o.

A.

9.

A.

a.

A.

I

Yes.

Take the very same content?

Yeah.

No. f presume not. Not at that point. I think

after a few months or years or something you r re free

to, you know, i_t reverts to you. I f 'm not I
really don't know about the law that wel_l.

Okay.

But it was -- you know, it was written for The

Nation -- it was written for The Nation and, um __

Now, Mr. Kim described -- at the first hearing he

described the -- the organization as democratic with

a srnall D and progressive.

Right.

fs that your understandì.ng?

Um, frm not exactly sure what that means but yes. I

The Nation Co. Ltd. partners O5/21/I5 20
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MITCHELL - hIITNESS

to you?

A. Um, it meansr üR, that, üRr let's say I wrote an

article, rfttr, a column for The Nation, ufr, that¡ tlltt¡ I

r¡Jas free to then post it elsewhere, ulrlr within 48 or

after 48 hours, uh, if f, you know, gave The Nation

some creditors that where it came from.

Okay.o.

A. UÍr, and that this was done in fact encouraged to

do this because it spread publicity for The Nation.

You know, it hras like publicity of The Nation.

ALJ ADDfSON: Do you have any other questions on

this document, sir?

MR. MEJIA: No, I don't.

objections to making the agreement part of the

record?

ALJ ADDISON: Mr. Mej j-a, do you have comments or

MR. MEJIA:

ALJ ADDISON: Mr. Mitchell, do you?

(Beeping sound)

f 'm sorry. I canrt make that be quiet.

Mr. Mitchell, do you have comments or objections

to making the March 11, 2013 agreement part of the

record?

I do not.

MR. MITCHELL: Um, well, the only objection

The Nation Co. Ltd. Partners 05/27 /I5 39
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The Nation. That his content would be exclusive to
us.
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o. rf there was content on the b10g that Mr. Mitchell
say vJanted to also write about for sðy, uh, for
Huffington post, could he do that?

Um, in terms of the subject matter, yes. And

he -- he did, f believe. Um --
So what was it that he could not do?

um, he -- her ur* -- that the content that he actr:arly
wrote, the actual sentences had to be excrusive to
us. And this is standard in pubJ_ishing. W€, as the
magazine cannot have their articles be republished by

other places or pJ_ace in different places. Uh, in
the journalism profession that would be considered

self-plagiarism on the part of the writer and on the
part of other outlets it would be considered

copyright infringement. So, um, everything that we

publish at rhe Nation, um, whether i-t's staff writers
or freel'ancers has to be excrusive to The Nation.

The determination ar-so says that he wourd sometimes

have Mr. Mitchell come into the office.
Um, you know, I -- I think during my time he was

there very rarely, maybe once a year at that.
And was it -- wour-d it be his decision to come in?

The Nation Co. Ltd partners O3/IO/ß 39
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

terms of -- of editing of it, copy editing. And just

general, um, editors looking at it and commenting,

you know, I -- I get e-mails from Katrina for example

saying, oh, that I s a great column, maybe you should

add this link. Or have you seen this story, you

know, maybe you want to add this link or whatever sor

I certainly, uh, uh, I -- and they were not obsessed

with what f was writing but certai.nly I I had the

sense there was a lot of people paying attention and

f would get comments on what f posted.

Did you have to send reports?

No. I donrt think reports probably is not, um,

I -- I donft know. I guess not.

And did you need any equipment to do your work?

Just my own, um -- my ohrn laptop.

How did you identify yourself to third parties?

Generally it was Nation writer.

Did you have to provide notice that you needed,

um -- you were not available or needed some time off?

f certainly did to Katrina. You know, I saj_d, f rm

going away for a week or, you know, I'm, um, urnr our

power's off , uh, Hurricane Sandy has hj_t, and I'm,

you know, I'm in a hotel for two weeks, urrtr going on

a vacation for l0 days. Um --

The Nation Co. Ltd Partners 03/10/É 89
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MITCHELL - h]ITNESS

others that did but one particurarly did. Rearly was

on -- some weeks -- actually wrote items under his

name for my blog and was credited on the blog and

things l_ike that. But that was not, uh, normal.

0. Did you ever interview peopJ_e for the blog?

A. Oh, sure, yeah.

A. How did you introduce yourself to them?

A. Um, âs, ufr¡ a writer or blogger for The Nation.

O. AII right. So now, do -- I -- f had heard, uft, Ms.

vanden Heuvel's name throughout. r understand your

connection with her. I¡rlhat contact during your work

did you have with Ms. Valkenburg?

A. only to periodical-J-y complain that a check was late

ot, you know, where's the check or, you know, very

friendly but, you know, a check woul_d be late or --

a.

A.

O.

A.

Okay.

you know -- that that's it, real_ly.

And how r^rere the checks made payable?

Um, f don't understand. f mean they were made out to

me. They arrived --

Did you -- did you have a company name or

No.

o.

A.

a.

A.

-- d/b/ a?

No. No. I don't have a company name at all

The Nation Co. Ltd. pa - 0s /21 /15
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VANDEN HEUVEL - WITNESS

BY MR. MEJIA

O. Okay. Um, Ms. vanden Heuvel, was -- did The Nation

require Mr. Mitchell to identify himself as,

affiliated with The Nation when he made media

appearances ?

A. rn the document that was just entered r think the

arrangement document that was a reference to if we

ask that he would identify himself. My understanding

and memory is that a number of media occasions he was

identified as that but also identified as author for

his books or previous editor of Editor & publ_isher

which was a Iong timer urTt¡ post he had.

o. All right. r'm going to show you Exhibit c that was

added to there. Um, why would -- why would The

Nation require Mr. Mitchell to identify himseLf as

affil-iated with it if -- if you considered him to be

an independent contractor?

A. u'n, hre have a number of independent contractors who,

ufrr write for us and for other places who are ar_so

doing, uR, books or other projects and we ask that if

it reLates to their writing for The Nation t.hey

identify themserves as such. uh, in many instances,

uh, Greg Mitchell- would go on and tal_k about one of

his bJ-ogs. If he hrent on to talk about Upton St.

The Nation Co. Ltd. partners - 05/2j/15
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A.

himself -- himself to third parties?

Um, I believe it was a writer for The Nation or a

blogger for The Nation. I I believe, a1so, you

know, Mr. Mitchell wrote during that period for The

Huffington Post, wrote several books. So there was

lots of other writing he did and he may have

identified himself differently, you know, in other

outlets. Um --

Um, if he needed time off, did he need to render

permission?

No.

o.

.4.

o. And the other issue, I think you touched on thls, but

could he do the same work for competitors?

Yes. And I mean we -- there was I believe you

know, we wanted the blog focused on the media for The

Nation. You know, he couldn't publish that content

somewhere else because we -- we do need that

exclusively. But, um, he did wrj-te for the

Huffington Post frequently during the period and he

wrote several books, u¡n, on subjects he also covered

for The Nation.

ALJ DOMINIQUE: Um, Mr. Silverman, I'm about to

show you the initial determination in this case. Urn,

please review and let me know if you have any

The Nation Co. Ltd Partners 03/10/15 34
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

BY

a.

ALJ DOMINIQUE: Okay.

Mr. Sil-verman?

MR. SILVERMAN

um, what r was asking did you make any pitches to The

Nation for articles or t.opics?

VùelI, as I said there h/ere there r^Jere a few prints

stories f made pitches to and -- and f ended up

writing and there were a couple that I -- I didn't

exactly, uflt, f mean I was writing daily, ufrr

I -- I -- sometimes f would say I woul_d like to do

something onJ-ine next week on this or, u'1, you know,

l-ike cover this, uh, I didn't real_ly have to ask

permission (unintelligible, one second, O:25:24) but

we had a lot of interplay with -- as I testified

earlier, with Katrina. And usual-ly the suggestions

brere coming from her. Um, she would be suggesting or

urging strongly encouraging me to cover something so

it's coming from her or me. So

That she suggested something that you didn't feel

comfortable doing you felt, uh, you had the right to

sây, no -- in your area?

f'm certain had the right but I didn't I __ I

thought r had to accept that as r testified earr-ier

when r had to i-t wour-d be in m.y interest to accept

A.

o.

A.

The Nation Co Ltd. Partners - 04/I6/15
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MITCHELL . WTTNESS

O. How did the days

A. They just varied.

O. -- decide which is --

A. The constant updates they had to do with, urnr when

there was something --
(Computer beep)

ALJ ADDISON: Sorry.

ALJ ADDISONBY

A. something of particurar interest r was covering and

the -- The Nation wanted me to cover on an ongoing

basis. For example, $rikileaks r^ras a very important

issue for The Nation. r covered it every single day

for seven months.

So who decided the ongoingness of -- of -- of this?

Welf, it in both that case. There was another
:l

case' occupy hrall street. uh, there was another case

had to do with Rupert Murdoch. There was another

casê that had to do with íne 2OL2 election, to give

you- four examples. fn all those cases they hrere

things that Í, sort of, started. you know, f would
'ì

start to cover every day for a while and then they

would say, oh, itrs good. ftrs going good or it's
popular so, you know, keep going. So then f would

keep going and, uR, you know, in the case of

The Nation Co. Ltd. partners O5/27/I5 lz
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

free I

anything.

but, um, I

f never thought I was free to write

You know, there's this is your blog

I certainly never felt that geez, T.

could write anything. And r -- r have to stay more

or less within the agreed, urtr you know, subject

matter for that time- you know, media and poritics
or when I was only covering lrlikileaks for a few

months and then f was only covering Occupy [,la1].

Street.

Who decided that it would only --
Pardon?

o.

A.

o. Ítlho decided that it would only be the lrrall street,
uh, uh, Occupy hfall Street during those periods?

um, r think it r¡ras kind of cor-laborative in a bray.

rf r -- in both in both those cases r had started
writing about them because they !,rere enormously

important for The Nation audience. Utn, and f kept

writing about them which wourd have been expected for
a week or two and then they became in both cases the
most popular thing on the entire site, every single
day. Um, and that continued for months, really.
And sor 1roll know, that was and I _- I liked that.
It was good to wri_te something that hras so popular

but rhe Nation arso riked it because it was a real

The Nation Co. Ltd. partners O|/ZT/IS 22
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MfTCHELL - I,IITNESS

ußr rny AOL mailbox 492 results for her in over those

four years and, um -- and then f have some examples

of what she she suggestions she was making to

me. Utn, very frequent urgings, to check this out for

tomorrow's blog. Um, you should cover Michael

Hastingsr ulrtr ideal time to start a Murdoch l{at,ch

blog. Um, and, um, so it wasn't just that I had a

lot of contact with her and you know, but that, um,

lrrTlr the nature of it. Um, and, ufr, the attorney also

then said, reporting reporting to the publisher

rather than a than a supervisor seems more

indicative of a lack of immediate supervision.

!{e11, in fact, you know, what -- whatrs the whole

issue with The Nation i-s that Katrina vanden Heuvel

is both editor and publisher and co-owner and board

member and -- and all the rest. So, uh, clearly any

reference to me working with the publisher al_so means

I'm working with the editor and any time someone says

you're working with the editor, it also means f'm

working with the publisher and the co-owner and board

member. So, um, the attorney's letter also states, I

was quote unquote not interviewed before f was hired.

And, uh, again plainly false and l, uh, you know, I

do have the exhibit here, Lrm., where she says it seems

The Nation Co. Ltd Partners -.03/L0/15
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

A. Theyrre representative of the guidance freguent

guidance I got on --

û'le1l, frequency r¡¡e canrt tell because there's no

date. But you -- the representative of the substance

of the guidance?

Yeah. Itd say, you know, but that these werer urrtr

um, examples good examples of the type of, um, um,

guidance or suggestions or urgings that I got from

her.

Okay.

ALJ DOMfNIeUe: Any comments or objections, Mr.

Silverman?

0.

A.

o.

MR. SILVERMAN: I do, your Honor. I think i.t,s
not a proper foundation. r think i-t's just tidbits
of -- based upon his obrn serective editing of various
e-mails which is not a representative sample

necessariLy and it's not time specific. r don't
think it's adequate foundation.

MR. MfTCHELL: Each of the each of the 15

examples have time and dates given even the time

of day on them. They,re al1 form 2OLO 20L4.

Al,J DOMINIQUE: Mr. Silverman, I'm goJ_ng to note
your comments for the record as marking as claimant,s
Exhibit 1.
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VANDEN HEUVEL - h]ITNESS

thing also you had, you know, several demands

which would have put a burden on the internal

workings of the office and demanded more staff time

so it was a decision that that didn't make sense.

Okay. Um, nolr, you -- T --

But there was no

f 'm sorry.

o.

A.

o.

A. There was rìor you must cover this.

suggestion and what else

o. r think you testified or wrote that a few minutes ago

that thatr urr -- I'm not sure of the language you

used but it was a you occasionally you make a

suggestion for something f might cover, remember?

ülithin the mandate and framework of your your

criticism.

And what would you -- how often did that happen?

r think r wourd fire off an e-maiL in a very loose

wây, Like what do you think? Take a look. UrTr, I
tend to do that with freelance writers, uh, even

writers who havenft started writing for us to see

whatrs possible. So it is a broad range of

correspondence r have with contacts, certainly with

other bloggers, âs weII.

A.

a.

A.

It was your, ulrlr

o. And do you recall ever being more forceful and sort

The Nation Co. Ltd. partners 05/21 /IS 111
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KIM - WITNESS

proceeded. Again, there was a r-ot of variation in
the in the in the relati-onship. so there $rere

times when, urn, he didn't write at alr- and then there
were times when he wrote rather infrequently but ï
would say the majority of the time it bras a short
daily post that would groh¡ a little bit throughout

the day.

Did he know to write daily or r¡ras it hisr lfmr

discretion whether he wrote on a daily basis?

um, you know, r berieve that's what he pitched to us,
a sort of daily aggregated blog.

And then when, for example, he would create the post,
urt, did he choose what he was, um __

The content the contents of the post and the topic
!.rere really -- entirely his choice. The again,

there would be, as editors we would often make

suggestions. Um, and we would -_ at the end of the
day, since it,s my publication and I have to vouch

for everything that goes üp, if somethi-ng didn,t meet

the standards of the pubJ-ication we wour-d -- ure could
ask for corrections or hre courd ask to to take it
down and sometimes r¡¡e wourd. But he was rear.ly -- it
was his choice as to which subjects he would

particularì_y cover that day. Um, the treatment he
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

my -- so those were work -- work assignments. Um, I
mean, again, it came from Katrina vanden Heuver-r urìr

directì-yr tfrTtr and so T, you know, fel_t I
should -- should do them.

lvho made determinations about what you wourd write?
9'lel1, it I s, you know, it it it would, urt¡ I
mean of course the fírst determination is the general

scope of the brog- what -- what's the subject of the
blog- And that that changed somewhat. you know,

initially it was very much focused on media. Um, he

mentioned then that the six months strictly about

û{ikileaks, urTr, üh, then there was another period
about four months, stri-ctly on occupy ûrlalr street.
Um, even though f wasn't able to do this campalgn

blog, um, I -- initially two years later r !úas

able the focus kind of changed to campaign kind of
thing.

o.

A.

Um, so, ürTlr you know, that determined in a general

sense hras -- $ras¡ um; by, um, you know, by myself and

the editors deciding what, um -- what the content

should be and -- and as f mentioned, sometimes I
wanted to go in a certain di-rection. r wasn,t

allowed. There were times I was happy to go along

with whatr ufit, you know, what they r¡rere suggesting

The Nation Co. Ltd partners O3/IO/I5 g3
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

and, um --

o. Generally, was it you saying, f'm interested in
working this and r want to write about wikileaks or

r¡ras it the employer saying we want you to write

WikiI,eaks.

Um, hlikileaks started just I started --
This just hypothetical.

I'm sorry.

A.

o.

A.

o.

A.

To get an idea of how the decision-making happened.

Um, it's hard to say. I -- I -- you know, urrtr um,

it if f got if I got really interested in
something and r started writing about it a 10t then

there might be a sense of wow, this is really
popular, you know, and Richard was someone who would

moni-tor the, you know, traffic and so there would be

a certain sense of , uror^r, this is realry working

and -- and in the case of Wikileaks, even though I
had sort of started it, uR, they then, you know, sort
of cheered me on and, ufrr you know, it very quickly
became the most popular feature on the entire site.
Um, every day it $ras the most popular feature on the

slte. And, um, in fact, after about three months of
that I requested, okay, I want to get off into
something else and f was told by Katrina thatr Dor w€
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MITCHELL _ V{]TNESS

most of them because she was my supervisor. She was

my employer. She made the decision about renewing my

contract each year and so I didn't feel_ I was free

and -- especialJ-y since she was pubJ-isher, co-owner

and board member.

o. r understand about your feelings, and r aporogize for

going over this but r was not in the hearing before

and this is separate

A. No. f 'm referring to l_ast to the Ìast I

testified, three weeks ago

O. Oh, oh, the last time.

A. -- here.

O. Oh. Okay. Uñ, so you felt that it was because she

hras the one that who was writing the checks that you

had to assess an obl-igation to real-ly listen to what

she was saying?

A. Absolutely. Right. Absol_utely.

o. Absorute]-y. And then obviousJ-y her requests you took

very seriously and generaÌÌy try to accept

A. Yeah . I tried to . Didn ' t al_ways .

0. Didn't always but

A. Yeah.

O. tried to accept?

A. Correct.

The Nation Co. Ltd Partners
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MITCHELL - !{ITNESS

O. Um, and if you didn't accept that didn,t affect your

writing for the blog. I mean you hrere still under

the same contract?

A.

o.

Yeah.

Utn, and -- the, um -- the magazine, um, didn't supply

you with a computer?

No.A

0

A

You had your ovrn computer. hrhere did you work from?

I worked from home. Um, except for, you know, very

few number of visits to The Nation office. Uh, I
worked from home. r used my ohrn rnternet connecti_on.

But you could blog from anywhere, f suppose. you

could, um -- as long as you had your computer and --
Yeah. r had been in fact, during Hurricane sandy

T., um, continued daily since f was in a daily blog

sj,tuation on that period I was coverJ.ng the 20,

um' 2012 campaign every day. constantly during the

day and weekends. And so when Hurricane sandy came r

bras stuck in a hotel and stuck out of my house, so I
had to go Èo places with Wi-Fi.

So you could get online?

Yeah. To get onto Nation.

o.

A.

o.

A.

a. You could actually, uh, continue to brog in Germany,

if you wanted, right?

The Nation Co. Ltd. partners O4/16/15
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MITCHELL - WTTNESS

the day even into the into the wee hours of the

morning, someti-mes. Um, I wouJ_d be, you know, I

could sây, what's interest me in this the broad

subject area that r was supposed to cover which was

media and politics.

Okay. So generally had to do -- had something to do

with media, intersection with politics generally.

And, uß, so f would often have freedom to sây, okay,

what interest me. Um, what would I like to write
about today. What seems most important.

9tlhat -- what's the best for my blog or for for The

Nation. um, but there were many other times where r

would get a note, generally from Katrina, sometimes

from, üil, ufr, someone else, generally, uR, Ms. vanden

Heuvel, um, saying, why donrt you cover this. Or you

rearly shourd cover this. or -- or there's different
language- And again, r have 15 exampres here which r

can submit.

O. Yeah, but did -- think

you said, no? I don't

discuss that.

A. Yeah. I f could. But remember, she was the

editor, the publisher, the co-owner and a board

member of The Nation, uR, The Nation entlty. Um, so

The Nation Co. Ltd. partners O5/2i/I5 14
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MITCHELL - WTTNESS

yêsr I could theoretically. I I might¡ urrì, be

abl-e to sây, no. I mean, occasionally I say, no.

Just just just didn't respond. I didn't say

Irm not going to do that. You know, sue me. you

know, I just didn't do it.

More often than not, I did then cover that the next

day or tbro days later or something like that because

I felt, you know, shers just the the in most

people's mj-nd she is The Nation, you know, and I

didn't feel I had the, ümr you know, I could risk

alienating her and just refusing time after time to

now do what she was urging.

o. Okay. So the times you didn't outright sây, no.

you just let it go and you didn't

Ríght.

-- wri-te about that.

A.

a.

A.

a.

A.

There urere times, yeah. Uh-huh.

Did you hear anything about it afterwards?

f don't think so. I mean, I don't think she said

what -- whatever happened to that? Um, she might

have. I I'm not sure. Generalì_y -- generally it

was, url, you know, I just didn't there were a lot

of things I was covering. A lot of interesting

things I was covering. But a lot of things were, you

The Nation Co. Ltd. Partners 05/2i /I5 15

n s6 ¿L)

But



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

B

9

10

11

I2

13

1,4

15

L6

I1

1B

19

20

2I

22

23

24

25

MITCHELL - ü]ITNESS

know, she'd say -- f suggest you do this. Or it

would be great if you did this. Or, you know, pJ.ease

do this, you know, so I wouÌd kind of judge how

important i_t was, this to her. you know, if it was

real-ly important r real-J-y thought. r had to respond.

rf it seemed a littre more off the cuff then, maybe r

a.

wou.l-dn I t.

Al-I right. Now, what about if you woke up one

morning and you just didn't feel_ well_.

A.

a.

Uh-huh.

courd you have asked your neighborr lour coJ.J_eague to

write something up for them?

No. It wasn't anything like that. It was, uR,

um -- there were days like that. There hrere days

when, umr not much was happening. you know, the,

um -- the blog went through different, ufr, periods.

You know, when it started and again, I've submitted

things about this, um --

Okay. But

f t was cal_l_ed Daybook. Okay.

Could you have somebody el_se do it for you?

No. No. Not. really, no. It was there were -- it

A.

a.

A.

o.

A.

was my bJ-og under my name. Occasionally, an j-ntern

wrote something for it, but, ufr, it would no it
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MITCHELL - I¡ûITNESS

ALJ DOMINIQUE: Okay.

Mr. Silverman?

Y MR. SILVERMANB

o . um, what r was asking did you make any pitches to The

Nation for articles or topics?

A- û{e1lr âs r said there }¡ere there were a few prints

stories I made pitches to and -- and f ended up

writlng and there brere a couple that I -- I didn't
exactly, umr f mean f was writing daíly, urn¡

r -- r -- sometimes r wourd say r wourd l1ke to do

something online next week on this ot, um, you know,

like cover this, uh, f didn't really have to ask

permission (uníntelligib1e, one second, o:25224) but

$re had a 1ot of interplay with as r testified
earlier, with Katrina. And usuarly the suggestions

were comi-ng from her. u'n, she would be suggesting or

urging strongry encouraging me to cover something so

it's coming from her or me. So

o. That she suggested something that you didn't feel
comfortable doing you felt, uh, you had the right to
sây, no in your area?

A. I'm certaj-n had the right but I

thought I had to accept that as

when I had to it would be in

The Nation Co. Ltd. Partners
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VANDEN HEUVEL _ VÙITNESS

A.

a.

BY

0.

it for another, you know -- for a while longer?

I don't recall.

Okay. And the same thing with Occupy?

ALJ ADDTSON

We did -- we did two questions in the

you recall that --

I do not.A.

o.

A.

-- that he wanted to quit?

f do not recall you wanting to quit and

recall saying you must not quit.

MR. MITCHELL: OkaY.

ALJ ADDISON: Go ahead.

MR. MITCHELL

I

BY

o. Okay. Do you recall I believe you testified this

so but I ' II ask you to confirm. Do you -- do you

recall along with Richard Kim, ulTlr telling me I could

not cover campaign 2012 when f wanted to shift to

that

first bit. Do

A.

a.

A.

My understanding --

early tn 2OL2?

My understanding is that because there had been

disagreement you would cover the media that you hrere

absolutely -- it was your right to cover it within

the framework of the media but to go -- to do a whotr-e

the Nation Co. Ltd. Partners 05/2'7 /)'5 lf O
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VANDEN HEUVEL _ WITNESS

thing -- al_so you had, you know, several demands

which would have put a burden on the internal

workings of the office and demanded more staff time

so it was a decision that that didn't make sense.

O. Okay. Um, nohr, you -- I --

A. But there bras no --

0. Irm sorry.

A. There bras nor lou must cover this. ft was your, uR,

suggestion and what else

a. r think you testified or wrote that a few minutes ago

that thatr urt -- frm not sure of the language you

used but it was a you -- occasj-onalJ_y you make a

suggestion for something I might cover, remember?

A. lVithin the mandate and framework of your your

criticism.

O. And what would you -- how often did that happen?

A. r thlnk r wouÌd fire off an e-mail in a very r-oose

wây, like what do you think? Take a look. Uil, I

tend to do that with freelance writers, uh, even

writers who haven't started writing for us to see

what's possible. So it is a broad range of

correspondence r have with contacts, certainly with

other bJ_oggers, as well.

o. And do you recaLl- ever being more forcefur and sort

The Nation Co Ltd. Partners 05/21 /15
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Mitchell was told that he had to open a separate

Twitter account apart from his own to promote this

blog for The Nation.

UÍr, the -- uh, one moment, please. Further, if

you look at the contracts that were admitted into

evidence you can see that Mr. Mitchell was, urt,

restricted to only writing on media. Um, there was

testimony from both sides that he wanted to switch

over at one point to camparqn 2012 and Ms. vanden

Heuvel said that you could switch over to campaign

2012 as long as you focus on the media. So he

couldnrt -- he didn't really have artistic freedom

to -- t.o write about anything he wanted to. He had

to be -- he was -- he was held within a certain scope

in the media.

Um, f have nothing further.

ALJ ADDISON: Mr. Mitchell, do you have closing?

MR. MITCHELL: Okay. $leLl, what underlined my

claim in the beginning wasr urrtr that from what I

knew, uhr I might very wel-l- be covered under this

based on term we keep hearing, close supervi-sion, uh,

daily, uh, work, uh, frequent exchanges with the

editors along with my use of the site architecture

and, uh -- and The Nation's, um -- The Nation,s

The Nation Co. Ltd. Partners - 05/21/L5 133
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

and, um --

o. Generally, was it you saying, Irm interested in

working this and I want to write about [¡likileaks or

was it the employer saying we want you to write

lüikiLeaks.

Um, Wikileaks started just I started --

This just hypothetical.

I'm sorry.

A.

o.

A.

o.

A.

To get an idea of how the decisíon-making happened.

Um, it's hard to say. I -- I -- you know, urtr¡ um,

it if f got if I got really j-nterested in

something and I started writing about it a lot then

there might be a sense of wow, this is really

popular, you know, and Richard was someone who would

monitor the, you know, traffic and so there would be

a certain sense of, r^rot^r, this is real1y working

and -- and in the case of Vilikileaks, even though I

had sort of started it, um, they then, you know, sort

of cheered me on and, um, you know, it very quickly

became the most popular feature on the entire site.

U¡û, every day it was the most popular feature on the

site. And, ürrr¡ in fact, after about three months of

that I requested, okay, I want to get off into

something else and I was told by Katrina that t tLot we

The Nation Co. Ltd Partners 03/10/t5
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MITCHELL . WITNESS

want you to stick on wikileaksr so it kind of started
out I just it kind of happened accidently, I
just started it and then it became this bit
phenomenon and, um -- and then they wanted me to
stick with it, even after I had sort of wanted to
move on so

O. lllhat hrere your work hours?

A. WeIl, I it varied, uh, you know, f had, urt, urrtr

you know, that firstr ur. -- first months we talked
about I had to get up early and post this Daybook.

You know, and r might be done by 10 o'crock or 11

o'crock in the morning and then ild have to update a

little bit during the day.

u'n, the -- with the wikileaks and occupy warl street
it was almost 24/7. r courd be up to 2 in the

morning, um, covering something something that hras

being covered onl_ine et t um -- or on a ne$Jspaper

site. um, it rearly almost was 24 or at least Lg/1.

Um, and, urtr, um, so there was that. There hrere days

when r wrote what you might more consider a corumn,

you know, get up and say, I'm just going to write on

one subject today and I know they -- they'd Like me

to qet it up by noon so I'm going to take morning,

and write on one subject a rittle ronger and then

The Nation Co. Ltd partners O3/IO\/15 g5
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

someone to if that's your question. I could have

hired someone to do research for the blog that I

would then write an article based on this.

Okay. Um, and you talked about -- when the Judge

asked you some questions about when Katrina asked you

to, ürTlr certain topicsr urTrr there were times where

you accepted those and times that you didn't

Right.

But I want to ask the other way, bJere there times

where you suggested topics to, umr Ms. vanden Heuvel?

Oh. Thatrs the question. Um, specific topics on a

given day, uR, I rm sure it happened. Um, it was not

that common. !ùhat !'Jas more conmon was we -- wellr w€

did have, lfrrlr disagreements at times when f wanted to

shift focus to a different subject, or a different,

going into, a whole different topic for a while or

for a change of focus for the blog. And she and

Richard Kim would talk about it and then sây, no.

But in terms of any specific day where I would say, I

wouldn't have to generally get an okay from her,

Iike, you know, here's an idea, for something. Is it

okay? I -- I think it happened -- now that I think

of it, it happened someti-mes, urrtr when there was a

Iot of coverage for a specific subject. Like

o.

A.

O.

A.

The Nation Co. Ltd. Partners
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MITCHELL - $]ITNESS

Wikileaks it went on every day on the same subject

including weekends for seven months and Occupy lrla11

Street, I think was six months.

A1l right.

Um --

So when they say to keep going, did you think about

saying, ño, I'm sick of this?

Uh, I didn't -- I didn't, until they -- f -- and

again I think I presented in exhibits or -- or I will

today. I think it was in Exhibit 6, urt, or certainJ_y

in my testimony, uhr in the case -- both of them,

particularly lVikiLeaks, after I thj-nk five months, I

wrote a letter which I have a copy of that I asked, I

said, okay. I think has run its course, I'd like to

stop and f \^ras told by Ms. vanden Heuvel that I

should stay on it for a while J-onger. And, ufr, so I

stayed on it for another month or -- month or two.

Uln, but thatrs not those aren't probably the best

examples. I think when I was referring to, uñ, being

urged to write, um -- write on certain subjects it

was more in the day-to-day when I wasn't doing

the I mean every day when I wasn't doing this kind

of, umr what they call live blogging when you're

covering one issue and updating it constantJ_y during

o.

A

o.

A
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

0. Um, and if you didn't accept that dldn't affect your

writing for the blog. I mean you brere still under

the same contract?

A.

o.

Yeah.

Um, and -- the, um -- the magazíne, umr didnrt supply

you with a computer?

No.A.

o.

A.

You had your ohrn computer. Where did you work from?

f worked from home. Um, except for, you know, very

few number of visits Èo The Nation office. Uh, f

worked from home. r used my ob¡n rnternet connection.

But you could blog from anywhere, f suppose. you

could, um -- as long as you had your computer and --
Yeah. I had been -- in fact, during Hurricane Sandy

T, um, continued daily since I was in a daily blog

situatfon on that period I was covering the 20,

um, 20LZ campaign every day. Constantly during the

day and weekends. And so when Hurricane Sandy came I
r¡tas stuck in a hotel and stuck out of my houser so I

had to go to places with Wi-Fi.

So you could get online?

Yeah. To get onto Nation.

You could actually, uh, continue to blog in Germany,

if you wanted, right?
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MITCHELL - TITNESS

terms of of editing of it, copy editing. And just

generalr umr editors looking at it and commenting,

you know, I -- I get e-mails from Katrina for example

saying, oh, that's a great column, maybe you should

add this link. Or have you seen this story, you

know, maybe you want to add this link or whatever sor

I certainly, uh, uh, f -- and they were not obsessed

with what I was writing but certainly I -- f had the

sense there was a lot of people paying attention and

f would get comments on what I posted.

Did you have to send reports?

No. I don't think reports probably is not, um,

f -- f donrt know. I guess not.

And did you need any equipment to do your work?

Just my ourn, Lrm -- my own laptop.

How did you identify yourself to third parties?

Generally it was Nation wrj_ter.

o.

A.

0.

A.

o.

A.

o. Did you have to provide notice that you needed,

um -- you were not availabl_e or needed some time off?

I certainly did to Katrina. you know, I said, I'm

going ah¡ay for a week or, you know, f ,m, umr uilr our

power's off, uh, Hurricane Sandy has hit, and I'm,

you know, I'm in a hotel for two weeks, r.trnr going on

a vacation for 10 days. Um --

A.
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KIM - IüITNESS

referred to as the style manual there. There is

maybe, um, you know, a sheet of information that was

a very basic, r-rm, guide to Nation style. I woul-dn't

call it a manual and it certainly is not the manual

that our copy edj-tors use which is, urnr you know, I

believe over 100 pages 1ong. That is really just for

our staff to absorb and apply that style to our

content.

Okay. So this is referring to the same thing. What

you're saying is sort of guidelines for them.

Just technical guidelines for entering things into

the computer system. That's really what the bloggers

recej-ved. So it's so that they can do that and

they're notr urrtr you know, coding errors or broken

links oE¡ umr fields that are checked off improperly.

Um, you know, hre really treat that as sort of the

delivery mechanj-sm for content to come to our editors

who then bring ít up to, you know, the quality

hre -- we need to have it up to to post onl_ine.

And it says and you touched on it. Uh, the

determination says that Mr. Mitchell could not work

for competitors if writing on the same subject?

You know, I -- f, no. That's not. It was it

o.

A.

o.

A.

rea1ly was, uR, that the blog would be exclusive to
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MTTCHELL - WITNESS

this. The use of their lrleb site system for entering

stori-es f rom home.

A. Right.

O. hlere you referring to, urì, the content management

A.

0.

system, here?

Yes. Yes. Uh-huh.

Okay. Now, who trained you on how to use the content

management system?

MR. MEJIA: Actually, Ilm gonna strike that.

BY MR

a.

. MEJIA

Can you tell to everyone what the content management

system is, first?

Um, well, it's a conmon thing, now evolved for years

for all lVeb sites of this sort. Uh, where

A.

you -- excuse me. You have a password. Um, you, uh,

have an address to -- where you go. you sign in, ühr

and then a form comes up where you might check off

some boxes but then you can literalJ_y write, uh, your

articÌe or paste in the articl_e if you're written it

elsewhere. And then you go through some ot.her steps

and, uh, press, publish. Sometimes, some places or

sometimes something wiJ-1 be published automatically

and other times it basically goes to editors who wil_l

ultimately pubJ-ì-sh it.
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MITCHELL - t^¡ITNESS

o. And you can do this remoter.y. you can do it in the

office. I mean, it's it's

A. It can be done it can be done remotely, certainly.

a. could you have, urTr -- courd you have done your work

on the blog without using this system?

A' No. They -- r don't think they wour-d have r mean,

theoretically, I coul_d have written a pi_ece and

attached it as an e-mair. And someone in the office

wourd then have to go through the troubre of J.oading

it on the site. But I -- f never did that and I

don't think that would have been torerated one bit.
Because it's a Katrina just

o. Did someone from The Nation tell you that you had to

use this system in order to upl_oad?

A. Yes. Certainly.

O. Okay. lrlho was that?

A. hlho was that?

A. Yeah.

A. Um, well, probably it was Emily Douglas who was then

the lr]eb editor and may still be. certainly Katri_na,

Richard Kim. I -- I don't know. It was __ Emily

Douglas it it was f mean, I've worked in

magazines before with lrreb si_tes rike this and r sort

of knew what the deal- i-s. But whether Emily DougLas
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KÏM - !ÙITNESS

A. Um, again --

BY ALJ DOMINIQUE

O. ttùas it part of Mr.

rflûr mentor

A.

o.

A.

BY

0.

No.

editors?

No.

MR. MTTCHELL

So he you would deny that I got an intern, uh,

uh -- f would get a message from Emi1y Douglas

saying, here's your intern. please call them and

talk about what their work is gonna be

Becausê x

Mitchell's responsibilities to,

A.

o.

A.

a.

A.

and what they can do for you.

you definitely got that e-mail.

Yeah.

That hras a necessary e-maiJ_ to set up that once

you would post something that you would -- your

intern

Risht.o.

A. -- would cl-ean that up. Um, I -- I happened to know

that you were a real-ly good mentor to the interns.

uln' some writers are and some are not. rt certainry
not !ìras, utrtr a part of your duties under this
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MITCHELL - IVITNESS

wasnrt set up like that where someone else would do

ir.
o. Now, the interns, could they -- did you look at any

changes they made or they changed it and that was it?

No, they, urt, the interns had two -- I mean they did

a lot of things for the mag -- they're very important

people at the magazine. And they -- but with -- with

me they reaLJ-y had two functions. One was they -- I

would be assigned a new intern every three months.

Okay. Um, they would be, um -- and there would be

my -- I woul_d share this intern with two or three

other peopÌe and then whatever. Um, they would be

expected to send me, ufl, links or tips for my

blog -- my media blog.

So, uft, depending on how industrious they ü/erer utttr

they -- different ones would send me, oh, did you see

this? Or here's a link to add to your b1og. Or

here's something you should write aboutr ürn --

ltlell, once you wrote did they go back over it, the

interns ?

No. The they didn't. The second function they

had wasr urrtr starting the second year and going for

the rast three and a half years, the interns brere the

first people to copy edit every story I wrote.

The Nation Co. Ltd. partners - 05/2i/I5 7'7

A.

O.

A.

lql



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

I

9

10

11

I2

13

I4

15

16

77

18

19

20

2L

22

23

24

25

VANDEN HEUVEL - WITNESS

o. Um, would -- would you confirm that, Ltm, I was

assigned The Nation intern every -- every three or

four months, urì, during that whole period?

And so -- and so rdere otherr urrì, freelancers. Those

who wri-te periodically.

Right. fs it your understanding that The Nation

j-ntern -- interns besides, f think you said. I

think, urTrr would -- could provide media tips or rinks

or something like that. r think you said t.hat today

but

No.

A.

o.

A.

0.

A.

-- did they aLso

My understanding was you used that intern at your

discretion --

Right.0.

A. -- urTt, there was an instance where the i-ntern, you

know, was drafting some peopÌe that was your

discretion.

Right- okay. But these brere interns that worked in
your -- out of your office?

They work, ur, out of the office. There are a few

offsite, though.

Okay. And is it your understanding that they also

did' ufr, extensive or sometimes first copy editing of
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MITCHELL - V{ITNESS

but

MR. SILVERMAN: I -- f now have the complete

exhibit, but I do -- don't understand. page 4,

doesnrt have anything on it. It just says, 4.

MR. MITCHELL: Right.

MR. SILVERII4AN : ThiS .

ALJ DOMINIQUE: that's a1l right.

MR. SILVERMANBY

A. I mean, I if I could easily remedy that but

obviously I can't do that today so that's

your you're absolutely right. There's no Kevin

Gosztola was an intern at The Nation. I worked very,

very closely with, uh, for many months. He -- we

actually even coauthored a book, urrtr sor um -- so

So some of the hits might have been regardj_ng the

book?

f was all inter -- alL overlapping sor um, I mean

it b¡as it was -- he -- he worked on the book while

he was still at the Nation so

0.

A.

ALJ DOMINIQUE: Mr. Silverman, (unintelLigible,

two seconds, 2:01 239) of the document

MR. SILVERI,ÍAN: Well, Irm not sure that they

were havÍng to do with The Nation if he tal-ked about

working with him on a book. ft's true. He spoke to
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MITCHELL - 9{ITNESS

A. I was paid, um, basically a month to monthly check.

I Èhink the first year Ít hras twice a month and then

there vrere, you know, checks would get lost or come

Iate so f said, look. Okay. Once a month. Um, but,

um, yeah, it r.¡as by check.

Did you have to submit anything to receive palrment?

Uh, no.

Did you receive a 1099?

Yes.

a.

A.

o.

A.

o. Were you provided any benefits like vacation,

holidays, sick time, (unintel_ligible, one second,

Lz20z4L)?

Uh, no.A.

a. Did you (unintelligible, one second, I:20246) shares

like (uninteLligible, one second, Lz20z41) or workers

compensation?

No, no.

Uh, did you work out of a did you have any work-

related expenses?

Work-related?

Expenses?

A.

a.

A.

0.

A. Uil, wel1, yeah. I I -- I -- L, uh, yeah, but the

contract you see, they -- they -- they, Lun, would,

um, I think each year they said I could spend 2, OOO
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

to 2,500 for -- mainly for travel but I only went to

a couple of conferences. There was one conference in

Boston f spoke at. Um, but I rarely, if

ever except for that pace and maybe one other I

didn't really file a expense expenses with

them.

Did you receiver uflr¡ compensation for expenses or did

you -- or -- did you have to do anything?

Recei-pts, yeah. Uh-huh. Sure.

Did you receive any training or orientation?

Um, welI, training in the sense of , urTtr you know,

as as he mentioned, ulnr umr ûrleb siter umr urtrr

rules and !{eb site, what f would -- he -- he didn't

want to caLl it a style manual but there was

certainly style. You know, this is how you want

to submit thi-ngs and this is, uh, you know, basic

rules you should follow. f mean it went beyond

just here's how you press the button to get this

thing posted, it was also general guidelines.

Now, when you started working there, ìtm, did you ever

receive any instructions from the any staff

members ?

o.

A.

a.

A.

a.

A. Not realìy. No.

I -- I -- f don't

The Nation Co.

T, um, instructions. No,

think so.
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